

Minutes of the adjourned meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin: April 18, 1942. 1942

Madison, Wisconsin: Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, 1942

https://digital.library.wisc.edu/1711.dl/NYITTKATNEHKR8H

Copyright 2008 Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System

The libraries provide public access to a wide range of material, including online exhibits, digitized collections, archival finding aids, our catalog, online articles, and a growing range of materials in many media.

When possible, we provide rights information in catalog records, finding aids, and other metadata that accompanies collections or items. However, it is always the user's obligation to evaluate copyright and rights issues in light of their own use.

ADJOURNED MEETING OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS

Madison, Wisconsin

Saturday, April 18, 1942, 9 A.M.

President Glover presiding.

PRESENT: Regents Cleary, Ekern, Glover, Hodgkins, Holmes, Kleczka, Sensenbrenner, Vergerönt.

ABSENT: Regents Callahan, Werner.

A communication was presented from Regent Callahan in explanation of his absence. Regent Werner was absent because of the services he is rendering to the Government in Washington.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Vergeront, it was VOTED, That the minutes of the regular meeting of the Board held on March 14, 1942, be approved as sent out to the Regents.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE PRESIDENT

- Administration and General -
- 1. That the following action of the Faculty be approved:

That during the present emergency and upon the recommendation of a departmental committee, the Faculty of the College of Engineering may recommend that a senior be granted his degree short of the 146 specified credits by any number of credits not to exceed ten, provided that in no case will any shortage be approved where credit has been allowed for service in the armed forces or where a request for such credit is anticipated.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Sensenbrenner, adopted.

- 2. That the following actions of the Faculty be approved:
 - (a) Amendments to the constitution of the Wisconsin Union.

 (EXHIBIT B, attached.)

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Sensenbronner, adopted.

(b) Report of the Special Committee on Correlation of the requirements in Military Science and Physical Education, as revised. (EXHIBIT C, attached.)

Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Cleary, adopted.

- 3. That the war memorial presented by the Student Board be accepted.

 Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Kleczka, adopted.
 - Dean of Men and Dean of Summer Session -
- 1. That S. H. Goodnight, dean of men and dean of summer session, be granted leave of absence for one month, with pay, beginning April 11, 1942, because of illness.

Upon motion of Regent Ekern, seconded by Regent Holmes, adopted.

- Gifts and Grants -
- 1. That the following gifts and grants be approved:
 - (a) \$ 2,400.00 \$1200 from the Abbott Laboratories, North Chicago, Illinois, and \$1200 from the Lilly Research Laboratories, Indianapolis, Indiana, for research in the purification of the follicle stimulating hormone of the anterior pituitary gland, in the department of zoology under the direction of Professors R. K. Meyer and W. H. McShan, beginning July 1, 1942, and that the Comptr.ler be authorized to sign the agreement.

(b) \$ 6,000.00 - The Rockefeller Foundation, for researches on sometoplastic sterility as a cause of seed failure and on double fertilization in flowering plants, in the department of genetics, under the direction of Professor R. A. Brink, from April 15, 1942 to April 14, 1945.

(c) 32,500.00 - Wisconsin Alumni Research Foundation for the support of research for 1942-43, as follows:

Professorial research, \$20,000; Apparatus, \$5,000;
University Press, \$7,500.

(d) 200.00 - The Agicide Laboratories, Inc., Milwaukee, for research on pea aphis control in the department of economic entomology, under the supervision of Professor H. F. Wilson. (15B)

(e) 1,000.00 - Williams-Waterman Fund of the Research Corporation,

New York, for research on nicotinic acid from

wheat, in the department of biochemistry, under

the direction of Professors F. M. Strong and

C. A. Elvehjem, and that the Comptroller be
authorized to sign the agreement.

(f) 1,700.00 - American Potash Institute, Inc., Washington, D. C., for the renewal of industrial fellowship, for the study of boron as a fertilizer under Wisconsin conditions, in the departments of soils and plant pathology, under the direction of Professors Emil Truog and J. C. Walker, from March 1, 1942 to March 1, 1943, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.

(g) 750.00 - Monsanto Chemical Co., St. Louis, for the establishment of the Monsanto fellowship in chemistry for the study of catalysis of organic chemical reactions, under the direction of Professor Homer Adkins, for the year 1942-43, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.

(h) 1,100.00 - McConnon & Co., Winona, Minnesota, for the renewal of industrial fellowship in economic entomology for studies on pea aphids control, under the direction of Professors J. H. Lilly and T. C., Allen, from April 1, 1942 to February 1, 1943, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.

- (i) \$ 50.00 Junior Division, University League (Mrs. Volmer H. Sorensen, Treasurer) to continue their scholar-ship. (15B)
- (j) 250.00 American Foundrymen's Association (George H. Dreher, Secretary), addition to their loan fund.
- (k) 1,250.00 A. W. Meyer, Palo Alto, California, for the establishment of the Louise Wiepking Meyer loan fund. (A further amount, to be credited to this fund, will be paid to the University when Miss Meyer's will is probated.)
- (1) 750.00 Harshaw Chemical Co., Cleveland, Ohio, establishment of a fellowship in chemistry, beginning
 July 1, 1942, for study on flourine chemistry,
 under direction of Professor S. M. McElvain, and
 that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the
 agreement.
- (m) 500.00 Wisconsin Utilities Assn., Milwaukee, renewal of a fellowship in the Dept. of Chemical Engineering, 1942-43, under the supervision of Professor O. L. Kowalke.
- (n) 400.00 American Society of Heating and Ventilating
 Engineers, New York City, continuation of program
 for study on air distribution and air friction,
 1942-43, in Dept. of Mechanical Engineering,
 under direction of G. L. Larson.
- (o) 200.00 Pure Milk Assn., Chicago, Ill., establishment of four scholarships, \$50 each, for farm short course students, November 16, 1942 to March 13, 1943, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.

Upon motion of Regent Kleczka, seconded by Regent Ekern, recommendation No. 1 (a) to (o) under Gifts and Grants was adopted.

- Research -

1. That the contract between the University of Wisconsin and E. G. Hastings, professor of agricultural bacteriology, for research investigations during the year 1942-43, beginning September 12, 1942, half-time; at a salary of \$2700 for the period; charged to the research budget, be approved. (Professor Hastings will be retired from active service June 30, 1942)

Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Kleczka, adopted.

- Degrees -

That in accordance with the certification of the Registrar degrees be granted as shown in EXHIBIT D, on file.

Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Kleczka, adopted.

The Secretary presented the matter of the negotiations with W. H. and W/B. Barritt of Barron, Wisconsin, for the purchase of the Krahenbuhl Farm for a consideration of \$9500 - \$1000 to be paid in cash and the balance amortized over a period of years. It is understood that if part of the down payment is used for remodelling and alterations of buildings, one-half of the down payment would be waived for a period of one to two years. Upon motion of Regent Holmes, seconded by Regent Cleary, it was VOTED, That the sale be approved.

Regent Holmes brought up the action taken by the Regents on May 5, 1937, with reference to retirement. Upon motion of Regent Holmes, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was VOTED, That the action of May 5, 1937, be amended to read as follows:

Frestous Patrins on The

The date of retirement for a faculty member serving on an indefinite appointment on the twelve-month basis shall be the end of the fiscal year during which he reaches his seventieth birthday; the date of retirement for a faculty member serving on an indefinite appointment on the tenmonth basis shall be the end of the fiscal year during which or within two months of which (August 31) he reaches his seventieth birthday. His retirement shall be automatic. The Regents, however, reserve the right to terminate or modify the appointment of any individual between the ages of sixty-five and seventy when such action seems to them desirable. Anyone retired as aforesaid may be employed after such retirement for special service on special contract at the discretion of the Regents, but not as a member of the regular staff.

President Dykstra presented the Campus Development Plan as prepared by the Wisconsin State Planning Board and copies were distributed to the Regents. Upon motion of Regent Ekern, seconded by Regent Holmes, it was VOTED, That the Regents express their appreciation to the State Planning Board for this work and that the plan be accepted and adopted as a general plan for campus development, subject to corrections from time to time.

The President then suggested that a resolution which would provide for a University Planning Commission, representing the Regents, Visitors, and perhaps some faculty and alumni, be initiated by some committee of the Board to be presented at a future meeting so that there will always be someone in touch with building projects at the University. Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Sensenbrenner, it was

VOTED That this matter be referred to the Constructional Develop-

ment Committee

Comptroller Peterson made the following report on what had been done in regard to the telephone rate case:

The President of the Board, the President of the University, and the Comptroller acting in accordance with authority granted by the Regents at the meeting held on March 14, 1942, have employed G. R. Willet and Company of Chicago to study the telephone equipment and service requirements of the University and to represent the University for the Public Service Commission in the rate case now before them. The terms of employment are on a month to month basis, at a fee of \$250 per month and \$25 additional per day, which includes expenses, for each and every day the firms works away from their Chicago office on University of Wisconsin communication problems. The agreement is effective April 3, 1942, and may be terminated at the end of any thirty-day period by written notice to that effect.

Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Hodgkins, the report was adopted.

The President reported upon a communication from the United States Treasury Department regarding voluntary payroll deductions for the purchase of United States Savings Bonds by University employees. Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was

VOTED, That the Comptroller be authorized to set up such a plan at the University and to designate a Treasurer of the funds.

The President presented a plan for summer session courses on the bulleter twelve weeks basis this summer, beginning June 8, for students in engineering and also for work in mathematics, chemistry, commerce and physics. Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Sensenbrence approved.

Expeny filed

The President brought up the matter of the tender of the gift to the University by the Board of Directors of Morningside Sanatorium located on Highway 51, East of Madison, which was referred to the Finance Committee and Regent Cleary at the meeting of the Board held on March 14, 1942. Regent Hodgkins stated that he had gone over the property with Regent Cleary, Dr. Coon and Superintendent Gallistel and explained that the cottages were of frame construction, that there was no adequate water supply for fire protection and that the sewage disposal system was also inadequate. He stated it was the feeling of the committee that under present conditions, with the need for capital investment in the University proper, it would be unwise for the University to assume the burden of capital expenditures Apecessary to put Morningside Sanatorium in such shape that it could be operated by the state (it would require expenditures of at least \$50,000 the put the property in condition to meet the state standards) and that it was the recommendation of the committee and Regent Cleary that under these conditions the University at this time should decline the tender. Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was

VOTED, That the report and recommendation of the Finance Committee and Regent Cleary be adopted and that the Secretary communicate with Dr. Frost and the other members of the Board of Directors of the Sanatorium thanking them

for their generosity in making this offer to the University.

A report on research by Dean E. B. Fred was presented by President Dykstra and copies were distributed to the Regents. (Copy on file.)

President Dykstra called attention to the report of the Director of Publicity, copies of which were presented to the Regents. (Copy on file.) Buskerner

The matter of the orchard on Picnic Point was discussed. Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Hodgkins, it was VOTED, That the Comptroller arrange for the spraying of the trees and whatever conservation is required to protect them.

Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Hodgkins,

it was

VOTED, That the actions taken by the President since the March 14, 1942, meeting of the Board, which were sent out to the Regents, and the additional actions taken by the President presented today be approved and made a part of the records of this meeting.

President Dykstra explained the arrangement for course V-1 which may be substituted for R.O.T.C. and is available to recruits who have signed up for other service. Upon motion of Regent Kleczka, seconded by Regent Holmes. it was

VOTED, That the request of the United States Navy to establish a V-1 program at the University be approved and that in accordance with statutory provisions for exemptions from required military training, freshmen and sophomore men may substitute enlistment in V-1 or other similar defense courses for basic R.O.T.C.

The Regents, however, expressed the hope in connection with this action that these enlisted men be urged to take the Basic R.O.T.C. work for the advantages it would be to them in various ways. Students electing R.O.T.C. are to pay the equivalent of commutations withheld by the government.

The President presented the request of Dean William S. Middleton for a leave of absence to enable him to enter war service. Upon motion of Regent Hodgkins, seconded by Regent Cleary, it was VOTED. That the request be approved.

Regent Glover made the following statement -

We recognize Dean Middleton as a great leader. He has built us a great Medical School. His conscience calls him to service because in the first World War he had a lot of experience in treating war patients and he feels it is his sacred duty to answer the call of Uncle Sam. I am happy that we have granted him this leave of absence. The Board felt that a few words, of course, would be appreciated, but we wanted to have something more by which he could remember our appreciation of his long and faithful services to the University. The Regents have purchased this watch which will be presented to him as a token from the Board of Regents.

It was later arranged that the presentation would be made by President Dykstra at a staff meeting of the Medical School on Wednesday, April 22nd.

President Dykstra reported upon the resignation of Professor John D. Hicks of the History Department who has accepted a call from the University of California. Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Cleary, it was

VOTED, That his resignation be accepted, effective at the close of the academic year 1941-42.

President Dykstra read a letter from Summer Rogers, of Little Rock, Arkansas, son of Lt. Col. H. L. Rogers, Jr., to Governor Heil, regarding exemption from non-resident tuition. Upon motion of Regent Holmes, seconded by Regent Sensenbrenner, it was

VOTED, That the Secretary be requested to write the Governor with

reference to the matter.

University shops for training students from Chanute Field, which was refer to the Executive Committee by the Board on Merch 14 University shops for training students from Chanute Field, which was referred to the Executive Committee by the Board on March 14, 1942, with power to act. Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Ekern, it was voted, That the use of the shops for this purpose, as submitted to

the commanding officer of Chanute Field, be approved.

outlining a gift from L. R. Jones, Emeritus Professor of Plant Pathology, to the University, of his personal library of scientific works. Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Holmes, it was outlining a gift from L. R. Jones, Emeritus Professor of Plant Pathology, to the University, of his personal library of scientific works. Upon motion of

VOTED, That the gift be accepted and that the Secretary express the

appreciation of the Regents to Professor Jones for this generous gift.

The following recommendation was presented by President Dykstra:

That the memorandum of agreement between the Heyden Chemical Corporation, Garfield, New Jersey, and the University of Wisconsin, relative to the continuation of an industrial fellowship in agricultural bacteriology and biochemistry for a study of the production of citric acid by fermentation process, July 1, 1942 to June 30, 1943, under the direction of Professors I. L. Baldwin and W. R. Peterson, be approved, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement. (\$2200 to be paid in one installment on or before July 10, 1942.)

Upon motion of Regent Kleczka, seconded by Regent Vergeront, adopted.

Lift Fire

The Comptroller presented a communication from the National Park Service regarding the continuation of the custodianship of the CCC Camp buildings at the Arboretum by the University for the year beginning July 1, 1942. Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Vergeront, it was

VOTED, That the National Park Service be advised that the University wishes to continue the custodianship.

A report on the development at the Arboretum was distributed to the Regents.

The President reported upon the unanimous recommendation of the Honorary Degree Committee of the Faculty for the granting of an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws to General Douglas MacArthur on June 1, 1942, and recommended the approval of the award. Upon motion of Regent Sensenbrenner, seconded by Regent Cleary, it was

VOTED, That the recommendation be approved, the President to work out the details.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Ekern, it was VOTED, That the meeting of the Board scheduled for May 9th be adjourned to the date of the regular meeting scheduled for May 30, 1942.

Regent Cleary brought up the request of the Secretary of the Alumni Association for an appropriation covering alumni dues of graduates during the first one or two years after graduation. Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Sensenbrenner, it was

VOTED, That this matter be laid over for further consideration and study.

Regent Cleary presented the following recommendation:

That the terms of appointment of the President of the University approved by the Regents on March 18, 1937, be amended to provide that effective May 1, 1942, the University will pay up to and not to exceed \$3000 per year of household maintenance of the President's residence, and for conferences and similar expenses in Madison. (This is in addition to expenses outside of Madison, and for student and faculty entertainment.)

SIL

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Kleczka, the recommendation was adopted.

At 12:20 P. M. the meeting adjourned.

The Regents were entertained at luncheon at 12:30 P.M. at the Home Management House, the guests of Miss Zuill.

M. E. McCaffrey,

Secretary.

DOCUMENT 644 - April, 1942

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTION OF THE WISCONSIN UNION

Two amendments to the Wisconsin Union constitution are submitted herewith for the consideration of the faculty. Amendments to the constitution require the approval of the student body at a general election, approval of the faculty and of the regents.

The first amendment (section 1 below) was duly passed by the student body at the general spring election of 1941 by a vote of 867 to 368. The second amendment (section 2 below) was duly passed at the fall election of 1941 by a vote of 2,167 to 887. (The phrases crossed out represent deletions from the existing constitution and the phrases underscored represent new provisions):

"ARTICLE IV - GOVERNMENT

"Section 1 - The Union Council

"The Union Council shall be constituted as follows: Four students, ene-a-graduate-student-and-at-least-ene-a weman-student, in charge of Union House Committee or Club activity and elected-by-the-members-ef-the-cutgeing-Union Geuneil elected as officers of the Union Directorate as provided in the By-Laws.

"One student elected as President of the Union Council under Section 2 of Article IV.

"Section 2 - The Officers and their Duties

"The officers of the Union Council shall be as follows: President -- A student elected by the members of the outgoing and-ineeming Councile as provided for in the By-Laws."

THE WISCONSIN UNION

Porter Butts. Director

DOCUMENT 645 - April, 1942

REPORT OF SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON CORRELATION

In view of the national emergency, the commmittee on correlation of requirements in military science and physical education, appointed under faculty vote of June 19, 1941, recommends:

- (1) That male undergraduates be required to take two "hours" of physical education per week during each semester of their residence at the University.
- (2) That male undergraduates certified as physically unfit by the Department of Student Health be exempted from this requirement.
- (3) That juniors and seniors enrolled in an advanced ROTC course be exempt from this requirement.
- (4) That students declared ineligible for the basic ROTC course, but not exempted under section (2) above, be held to the physical education requirement only during the freshmen and sophomore years, unless accepted by a Selective Service board, in which case the requirement will revive for the remainder of their residence at the University.

All male freshmen and sophomores are required by statute to take the basic ROTC course (unless excluded by the Military Department on the recommendation of the Department of Student Health).

Your committee further recommends:

- (5) That the required physical education course for men and the basic ROTC course each carry zero credits per semester, and that the advanced ROTC courses carry credit as at present.
- (6) That a standing Committee on Correlation consisting of the commandant, the director of the required physical education program for men, the director of student health, and four other professors be appointed by the President to make adjustment of requirements in military science and physical education, with power to grant exemptions from the physical education requirements to all students who, from semester to semester, demonstrate their physical fitness; and to report annually to the Faculty on the nature and progress of their work.

(7) That these requirements go into effect at the opening of the academic year 1942-43 and remain in force until the close of the academic year in which peace is declared, and continue thereafter until modified by the Faculty.

병사 등 경기를 보면 가득하는 사람들이 되었다. 그렇게 되었다고 하는 것이다.

마다리 마련하는 사람들은 사람이 없었습니다.

L. R. Cole

C. V. Easum

J. H. Herriott

V. E. Kivlin

H. H. Lewis

A. L. Masley, Chairman

A. V. Millar

G. C. Sellery

Guy Sundt

Revised Copy.

PURPOSE OF THE FOUR-YEAR REQUIREMENT IN PHYSICAL EDUCATION FOR MEN by A. L. Masley

(To accompany report of the Special Committee on Correlation)

- The young men of the United States are being called to the service for war. The number subject to military induction will increase very greatly in the next year or two, and therefore it is imperative that these young men become as fit as possible physically, mentally, and emotionally.
- Health examinations of draftees for the formal defense units of the United States reveal that one of every three men is unfit for military duty. Many of their defects are due to lack of intelligent health behavior. Other studies show that a great national emergency increases mental and physical tensions in any population. Such conditions tend to produce an exhausted people. On the other hand we have learned that regular participation in physical activities results in a heightened fatigue resistance. Our Department of Physical Education exists to meet the emergency.
- It is proposed that the program of physical education for men at the University of Wisconsin be extended to the point where it begins to approach adequacy. It is not intended that the major content of the present program be completely changed, but rather extended or diversified, intensified and improved, both in scope and in execution, to include activities that will be of use to young men who may soon be in the armed forces of the United States. It should be intensified largely through a greater emphasis on dosage, training, and time allotment than is possible under present conditions.

The Proposed Activity Program

For Freshmen: -- Physical Fitness.

A conditioning course for body development and basic skills such as running, jumping, climbing, swimming, tumbling, throwing, etc., for all freshmen found deficient in strength, power, endurance, speed, and agility.*

For Sophomores: -- Sport Skills, Sports, Self-Defense Activities.

1. Sport Skills: Apparatus, Badminton, Basketball, Cross Country, Diving, Fencing, Golf, Handball, Life-Saving, Swimming, Tennis, Track and Field, Tumbling, Volleyball.

2. Sports (individual): Same as (1) above.

- 3. Sports (team): Baseball, Basketball, Soccer, Softball, Touch Football, Volleyball.
- 4. Self-Defense Activities: Boxing, Wrestling, Hand-To-Hand Combat.

5. Intramural Activities.

6. Physical Fitness (if desired).

For Juniors and Seniors:

- 1. Varsity Sports.
- 2. Intramural Sports.
- 3. Sports Skills, Sports, Self-Defense Activities.
- 4. Physical Fitness (if desired).

^{*} Sophomores, Juniors, and Seniors may substitute the Freshman Physical Fitness Program if they so desire.

ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

Since the March 14, 1942 Meeting

of the

Board of Regents

RESIGNATIONS:

- 1. Grover C. Wilson, associate professor of mechanical engineering, February 16, 1942.
- 2. Earl Ross Bell, instructor in physics, Extension Division, February 21, 1942.
- 3. Donald Teasdale, Sears-Roebuck scholar, January 3, 1942.
- 4. Dale W. Smith, assistant in agronomy, February 13, 1942.
- 5. Richard W. Nelson, WARF apprentice in physics, at the beginning of the 1st semester of 1941-42.
- 6. Curtis W. Jensen, research assistant in biochemistry, March 1, 1942.
- 7. Suen-i Wu, non-resident scholar (graduate), at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1941-42.
- 8. Elizabeth von Oettingen, university fellow in German, March 4, 1942.
- 9. Robert E. Menze, non-resident scholar (graduate), at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1941-42.
- 10. Jesse I. Etheridge, county agricultural agent for Oconto County, March 31, 1942.
- 11. Gordon Bradley, regent scholar in short course, January 3, 1942.
- 12. James P. Jolivette, instructor in plant pathology, March 31, 1942.
- 13. Lieutenant George H. DeChow, instructor in military science and tactics, March 5, 1942.
- 14. Lieutenant Robert C. Storey, instructor in military science and tactics, March 5, 1942.
- 15. Richard L. Potter, industrial fellow in biochemistry, March 1, 1942.
- 16. Gerald C. Gerloff, assistant in soils, March 4, 1942.

RESIGNATIONS:

- 17. William R. Sullivan, assistant in biochemistry, March 17, 1942.
- 13. Iris D. Fórbes, graduate assistant in residence halls, February 25, 1942.

- Carrier and a first the contract of franciscon in the 19. Lloyd M. Graf, industrial fellow in biochemistry, March 16, 1942, (1017)
- 20. William J. Hooker, research assistant in plant pathology, March 31, 1942.
- 21. John W. Jenkins, assistant in the division of social education, March 1,
- 1942.
 22. Joseph J. Tamulis, research assistant in biochemistry, February 1, 1942. opidas (grining)
- 23. Wallace W. Allen, university scholar in English, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1941-42.
- ar the data acceptant of displace. 24. Lois Bower, assistant in dietetics, March 10, 1942.
- 25. Lawrence H. Muehrer, dormitory fellow in Adams Hall, March 11, 1942.
- 26. Adrian C. Cassidy, dormitory fellow, Kronshage, March 14, 1942.
- The state of the s 27. Sylvanus D. Cook, Mary M. Adams fellow, at the beginning of the 2nd semester 36f : 1941-42. 7 or september 19 to the management of the semester of
- 28. Robert L. Clarke, WARF research assistant in chemistry, March 4, 1942.

The Artifactor from the contract and are a fine on the contract of the contrac

- 1. Daniel W. Mead, emeritus professor of civil engineering, to give three lectures, during the 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$45:
- 2. William Ryan, special lecturer in civil engineering, to give four lectures, during the 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$15 a lecture.
- 3. John Cage, lecturer in physical education women, to give lecturedemonstration in percussion, April 11, 1942, at \$25.
- 4. William J. Hooker, instructor in plant pathology, April 1 to June 30, 1942, at \$600.
- 5. R. M. S. Heffner, professor, supervising instruction in theory of radio communication, Naval Training School (Radio), half time for April, May and June 1942, at \$232.50 a month.
- 6. C. F. Oakley, instructor, supervising code instruction, Naval Training School (Radio), March 16 through June 30, 1942, at \$266.67 a month.
- 7. H. F. Kroening, instructor in typewriting, Naval Training School (Radio), April, May and June 1942, at \$133.33 a month.
- 8. The following persons appointed instructors in code, Naval Training School (Radio), April, May and June 1942:

Paul B. Grove \$150 a month
Theodore W. Kennedy 125 a month
Richard K. Showman 125 a month.

- 9. Glen H. Bell, lecturer in law, March 9, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$400.
- 10. Henry P. Nettesheim, research assistant in electrical engineering, February 1 to June 30, 1942, at \$150.
- 11. Michael Supitilov, assistant in electrical engineering, February 1 to June 1, 1942, at \$255.
- 12. Victor W. Richard, assistant in electrical engineering, February 1 to June 1, 1942, at \$255.
- 13. Rosa E. Bartell, assistant in radio, February 1 to June 30, 1942, at \$110 a month.
- 14. George M. Briggs, Jr., research assistant in biochemistry, April 1, 1942-June 30, 1943, at 540 a month.
- 15. Lloyd H. Graf, half-time assistant in biochemistry, March 18, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at 3210.

16. Edith Olson, assistant in dietetics, beginning March 16, 1942, at \$110 a month.

- 17. Charles A. Hornback, to conduct an education workshop at Ladysmith, 16 meetings, second semester of 1941-42, fees from the class not to exceed \$305.
- 18. Graham Lawton, specialist, Ladysmith workshop, 1 meeting, 2nd smester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$10.
- 19. Martha Linder, specialist, Ladysmith workshop, 1 meeting, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$15.
- 20. Vine Miller, specialist, Ladysmith workshop, 1 meeting, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$10.00
- 21. Hilda Oxby, specialist, Ladysmith workshop, 1 meeting, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$10.
- 22. Inez Sparks, special consultant in education workshop at Ladysmith, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at 314.70; specialist, Ladysmith workshop, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$10.
- 23. Laura Sutherland, specialist, Ladysmith workshop, 1 meeting, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$10.
- 24. Katherine Thomas, specialist, Ladysmith workship, 1 meeting, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$10.
- 25. Frank Dana, to teach a course in managing personnel (2 sections), Clintonville, 10 meetings, beginning March 12, 1942, not to exceed (200.
- 26. Clayton G. Orcutt, to teach a class in industrial safety engineering, Madison, 16 meetings, beginning March 9, 1942, not to exceed \$240.
- 27. Paul H. Sheats, to teach a class in adult education 155, Beloit, 16 class meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, fees from the class not to exceed \$325.
- 28. Graham Lawton, specialist, European geography class, at Loyal-Greenwood, 2nd semester of 1941-42, 1 meeting, not to exceed \$10.
- 29. Norman Bailey, to teach a class in European geography, at Loyal and Greenwood, 16 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$335.
- 30. Katharine Thomas, specialist, European geography class, at Loyal and Greenwood, 1 meeting, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$10.
- 31. C. F. Watson, to teach a class in geography 111, at Shawano, 16 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, fees from class not to exceed \$315.

- 32. Joseph Mott, to teach a class in psychology 101, at Stevens Point; 16 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, fees from the class not to exceed \$200.
- 33. R. D. Morrison, to teach a class in history 113, at Merrill, 16 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, fees from class not to exceed \$290.
- 34. W. O. Jenkins, to teach a class in history 114, at Stevens Point, 16 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, fees from class not to exceed \$200.
- 35. Clarence E. Ragsdale, to teach a class in modern systems of psychology in education 209, 14 meetings, 2nd semester 1941-42, fees from class not to exceed \$400.
- 36. John Randall, to teach a class in economic geography 3, at Elkhorn, 17 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, fees from class not to exceed \$300.
- 37. Ralph J. Book, to teach a course in introductory accounting 1 (Section 2), Milwaukee evening classes, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$160.
- 38. Paul H. Sheats to teach a class in foundations of education 202M, Milwaukee evening classes, 17 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$150.
- 39. Gordon N. Mackenzie, to teach a class in direct pupil services in the modern school, Milwaukee evening classes, 17 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$150.
- 40. Oscar H. Reinholt, to teach a class in Why We'll Win The War liberal education evening class in Milwaukee, 2nd semester of 1941-42, 12 meetings, fees not to exceed \$130.
- 41. C. E. Ragsdale, to teach a class in foundations of education 202M, Milwaukee evening classes, 17 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$150.
- 42. Sunder Joshi, to teach a class in Asia and The War, Milwaukee evening classes, 10 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, fees not to exceed \$200.
- 43. Kenneth L. DeBlois, to teach a class in mechanics 1 and 2, Milwaukee evening classes, 34 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, fees not to exceed \$255.
- 44. Arvil S. Barr, to teach a class in direct pupil services in the modern school, Milwaukee evening classes, 17 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$150.
- 45. James H. McGuire, to teach an ESMDT class in safety engineering in Milwaukee, 12 meetings, 12 weeks, beginning February 2, 1942, not to exceed \$130.
 - 46. Franklin Zellhofer to teach 2 sections of industrial sefety engineering (ESLIDT), Kenosha, 16 weeks, beginning February 9, 1942, not to exceed \$523.

47. Hubert R: Tessman, to teach an ESMDT class in practical metallurgy in service, at LaCrosse, 12 meetings, beginning February 12, 1942, not to exceed \$180.

- 48. E. E. Brinkman; to teach an ESMDT class in advanced time and motion study, at Racine, 12 meetings, beginning February 2, 1942, not to exceed \$130.
- 49. Robert E. Phenicio, to teach an ESMDT class in industrial safety engineering, at Kaukauna, 16 meetings, beginning January 26, 1942, not to exceed \$240.
- 50. Franklin Zellhofer, to teach an ESMDT class at Racine in industrial safety engineering, at Racine, 16 meetings, beginning February 2, 1942, not to exceed \$240.
- 51. Manley Monsen, to teach an ESMDT class in industrial safety engineering in Eau Claire, 16 meetings, beginning February 2, 1942, not to exceed \$240.
- 52. Manley Monsen, to teach an ESMDT class in industrial safety engineering, at LaCrosse, 16 meetings, beginning February 12, 1942, not to exceed \$240.
- 53. M. W. Dundore, to teach an ESMDT class in industrial safety engineering, at Beloit, 16 weeks, beginning February 12, 1942, not to exceed \$240.
- 54. Mile V. Johansen, county agricultural agent for Ashland County, March 9 to December 31, 1942, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 55. Ellen M. Krueger, county home agent for Langlade County, March 16, 1942 to June 1, 1943, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 56. Edna A. Baumann, assistant state leader, boys' and girls' clubs (rank of instructor), March 16, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$718.18 for the period.
- 57. Truman Torgerson, county agent for Rusk County, April 1, 1942 to December 31, 1943, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months basis.
- 58. Grant Sanderson, regent scholar (short course), January 5, 1942 to March 14, 1942, at \$50.
- 59. James F. Kelsner, granted anonymous scholarship for the 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$100.
- 60. Allen C. Hilborn, Frazer scholar, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$100.
- 61. Norman Scholes, Sears-Roebuck scholar (short course), January 5 to March 14, 1942, at \$30.

- 62. Lynn K. Brunn, industrial fellow in economic entomology, March 1 to March 31, 1942, at \$60.
- 63. Ching-seng Fan, Rockefeller fellow in agricultural bacteriology, July 1, 1942 to June 30, 1943, at \$720.
- 64. Gladys W. Ekeberg, non-resident scholar (graduate), 2nd semester of 1941-42.
- 65. Giraud Chester, non-resident scholar (graduate), 2nd semester of 1941-42.
- 66. Jorge Zarur, Whitbeck fellow in geography, July 1942 to February 1943, stipend about \$700.
- 67. Gilbert J. Mannering, industrial fellow in biochemistry, March 1, to August 31, 1942, at \$300.
- 68. William R. Sullivan, industrial fellow in biochemistry, March 18 to June 30, 1942, at \$350.
- 69. The following persons appointed LaVerne Noves scholars for the 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$30 each:

Robert C. Anderegg Lester L. Jirucha Rose M. Anderegg Allen R. Jones Robert B. Arnold Arne V. Larson Anthony H. Lind Gordon P. Barrington Richard G. Mason Ann L. Becker Frank A. Ecker Russell A. Pavlat John R. Ecker

Robert P. Eischens

Eudare B. Schocke

Robert P. Eischens

Walter S. Sivley Joseph W. Spradling Robert J. Giesen Robert L. Grilley Elizabeth A, Stark Odette M. Hendrickson Chrystal A. Swiggum Jean E. Tickler Jane B. Herman Vining F. Ihlenfeld , Carol J, Weeks Elgin W. Jacobson Charles H. Willison Christine A. Wood.

- 70. John E. Kreher, dormitory fellow, Adams Hall, March 11, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, board and partial room rent.
- 71. Paul L. Christoph, dormitory fellow, Kronshage, March 14, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, board and room.
- 72. Anne E. Lawless, Mary M. Adams fellow, March 5, 1942 to the close of the 2nd semester of 1941-42.

SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 1. Edith A. Stehle, instructor and supervisor in nursing, changed from half-time to full time, beginning February 1, 1942, at \$145 plus lodging a month.
- 2. Clause O. Ebling, county agricultural agent, transferred from Rusk County to Douglas County, April 1, 1942 to December 31, 1943, no change in salary.
- 3. George L. Wright, transferred from county agent for Ashland County to county club agent for Jefferson County, March 1, 1942 to January 1, 1943, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months basis.
- Robert W. Fulton, research assistant in horticulture, salary changed from \$625 to \$600 for the period February 6 to June 30, 1942.
- 5. Charles F. Huebner, industrial fellow in biochemistry, increased to month for April, May and June, and \$100 a month for July and August 1942. 1942.
- 6. Virginia Corrigan, technical assistant in the university press, salary changed from \$35 a month to \$25 a month, February to July 1942, because of a decrease in the hours of work.
- 7. Jordis Wiken, appointed to teach a course in photographic painting, Milwaukee evening classes, salary increased from not to exceed \$120 to not to exceed \$134.

대통화학에 대한 사이는 경기를 들어 없는 나라.

LEAVES OF ABSENCE

1. Marc J. Musser, assistant professor of neuropsychiatry, February 1, 1942 to the close of the year 1941-42, without pay.

2. Mariana Belle Melick, assistant in nursing, granted leave of absence beginning February 1, 1942, without pay.

and the second of the second o

BUDGET:

- 1. Transfer of \$185 from Regents Unassigned 1-D to Educational Administration, Dean of Women, equipment.
- 2. Increase of \$36,250 in the 3K Dairy and Farm Sales Revolving Fund budget on account of additional receipts.
- 3. Transfer of \$965.75 from Regents Unassigned 1-A and \$1149.75 from Regents Unassigned 1-E to physical plant, salaries and wages, student janitors. (Approved by the Executive Committee February 27, 1942.)
- 4. Transfer of \$125 from Regents Unassigned to the graduate school in support of the project on growth factor requirements of bacteria.
- 5. Transfer of \$1,000 from the unbudgeted cash balance in fund 8, Wisconsin Press, to the supplies and expense budget of the Wisconsin Press, fund 8.
- 6. Transfer of \$225 from Regents! Unassigned 1-E to part-time help, Teachers Placement Bureau.

FEES:

- 1. Cancellation of the charge of \$5.00 for the certificate of Junior Graduate in Liberal Arts.
- 2. The following students in the School of Nursing during the summer session of 1942 to pay the \$36 undergraduate feet for the eight-week session, plus \$2.00 for the infirmary fee, but to be exempt from the fees for the Memorial Union and publications because they will not be studying on the campus:

Mrs. Ruby Lewis Berndt
Miss Sylvis Borsche
Mrs. Dorothy Hanson Brill
Miss Catherine Norton
Miss Eunice Rechsteiner
Miss Alice Sanborn
Miss Rosemary Kreilkamp
Miss Helen Warne.

RESIGNATIONS:

- 29. Richard E. Usher, research assistant in political science, March 21, 1942.
- 30. Walter J. Mehl, track assistant in physical education men, March 30, 1942.
- 31. Alice I. Olson, home demonstration agent for Clark County, March 31, 1942.
- 32. Edna A. Baumann, home demonstration agent for Langlade County, March 15, 1942.
- 33. Clarence S. Youngstrom, resident in radiology, March 1, 1942.
- 34. Donald A. Bird, research assistant in English, March 4, 1942.
- 35. Joseph L. McKibben, post-doctorate fellow in physics, February 14, 1942.
- 36. Norris J. Anderson, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1941-42.
- 37. Anne E. Lawless, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1941-42.
- 38. Donald L. Benedict, assigned fellow in physics, February 14, 1942.
- 39. John M. Blair, WARF research assistant, February 14, 1942.
- 40. Alfred O. Hanson, research assistant in physics, February 14, 1942.
- 41. William Walsh, instructor in history, March 19, 1942,
- 42. The resignations of the following regent scholars in the long course in the College of Agriculture, to take effect at the close of the lst semester of 1941-42:

Leroy E. Cisar Elmer E. Fisk Alvin C. Jindra, Jr. Ronald G. Knight Robert H. Schoenmann Donald A. Vander Zee.

- 43. Harpld S. Best, assistant in dairy plant, March 14, 1942.
 - 44. Norman C. Kesler, assistant in dairy plant, March 7, 1942.
 - 45. David Frisch, graduate assistant in physics, February 14, 1942.

그 경찰 경험에 가고 그는 그는 그리고 있다면 사람들이 가는 것이다.

RESIGNATIONS:

- 46. Charles E. Bope, graduate assistant in pharmacy, February 18, 1942.
- 47. Crystalle H. Huber, library assistant in chemistry, March 26, 1942.
- 48. George J. Haltiner, graduate assistant in mathematics, March 16, 1942.
- 49. Ben S. Stephansky, graduate assistant in economics, March 17, 1942. Evans,
- 50. Gwynne Blakemore/instructor in English, March 12, 1942

- 51. Floyd Lounsbury, graduate research assistant in sociology and anthropology, March 25, 1942.
- 52. Alton C. Mather, long course sophomore scholar, College of Agriculture, at the close of the 1st semester of 1941-42.

in the control of the second second process of the control of the

나는 아이들이 가지 않는데 하는데 되었다.

APPOINTMENTS:

73. Chester V. Easum, lecturer, Canners Short Course, March 19, 1942, at \$25.00.

- 74. Harry A. Waisman, research associate in biochemistry, May 1 to July 1, 1942, at \$2500 per annum.
- 75. Donald Robert Gau, instructor in typewriting, Naval Training School (radio), April 1 to July 1, 1942, at \$125 a month.
- 76. Josephine M. Miller, instructor in orthopedic nursing, beginning April 15, 1942, at \$130 a month.
- 77. 1st Lt. Richard B. Port, instructor in military science and tactics, beginning April 1, 1942, without salary.
- 78. The following persons appointed assistants in residence halls for the balance of the academic year 1941-42, at \$50 each per month:

Robert L. Bittner March 17, 1942
George F. Gurda March 15, 1942
Lawrence E. Halle March 15, 1942
Morris Shovers March 17, 1942.

- 79. Leslie L. Foldy, graduate assistant in physics, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$375.
- 80. Dale E. Wurster, graduate assistant in pharmacy, February 19, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$227.27.
- 81. Ruth A. Evans, library assistant in chemistry, March 26, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, at \$25 a month.
- 82. Robert O. Johnson, undergraduate assistant in chemistry, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$250.
- 83. Woodrow W. Hare, assistant (1) in plant pathology, May 1 to June 30, 1942, at \$120.
- 84. Alfred O. Hanson, research assistant in physics, 6 months, beginning February 15, 1942, at \$750.
- 85. John M. Blair, research assistant in physics, 6 months, beginning February 15, 1942, at \$750.
- 36. Donald L. Benedict, research assistant in physics, 6 months, beginning February 15, 1942, at 4750.

APPOINTMENTS:

- 87. David Frisch, research assistant in physics, 6 months, beginning February 15, 1942, at \$750.
- 88. Alfred A. Bertagnolli, assistant in economic entomology, April 1, to September 1, 1942, at \$495.
- 89. Harry W. Basehart, research assistant in sociology and anthropology, month of April 1942, at \$60.
- 90. William J. Smiles, research assistant in cancer research, 4 months, beginning March 1, 1942, at \$100 a month.
- 91. Frank Whiting, assistant in dairy plant, March 26 to May 31, 1942, at \$220.69.
- 92. Jack L. Radomski, reader in sociology and anthropology, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$40.
- 93. Hilbert M. Schwartz, reader in sociology, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$85.
- 94. Joseph E. Nuquist, reader in sociology, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$30.
- 95. Bryce K. Ozanne, junior resident in anesthesia, beginning April 8, 1942, at \$25 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 96. John F. Poser, resident in surgery, beginning March 10, 1942, at \$50 a month plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 97. E. O. Thedinga, to teach a class in European history 217, Manitowoc, 16 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, fees from the class not to exceed \$325.
- 98. James Duff, to teach a class in sub-freshman English, Madison, 12 meetings, beginning March 9, 1942, fees from the class not to exceed \$100.
- 99. F. L. Statler, to teach elements of mechanical drawing (section 1), Milwaukee evening classes 20 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$117.65.
- 100. Henry C. Dettenmayer, to teach time and motion study 250b, Milwaukee evening classes, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$130.
- 101. C. A. Wiepking, to teach mechanics 206b, Milwaukee evening classes, 26 meetings, 2nd semester of 1941-42, not to exceed \$180.

Appointments:

102. Clifford Jurgensen, to teach a class in psychology of industrial relationships, Sheboygan, 12 meetings, beginning March 18, 1942, not to exceed \$180.

103. The following persons to teach metals and their alloys, at Janesville, 12 meetings, beginning March 23, 1942, at not to exceed \$130 each:

Irving W. Pickus Milton R. Pickus.

104. The following persons to teach in the Radio Technician Course, 16 weeks, each to receive the amount indicated for the service rendered:

James Creutz, fundamentals of radio, Janesville, Section 2, beginning March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$600.

G. L. Davidson, fundamentals of radio, Racine, Section 1, March 9, 1942, not to exceed \$630.

Marjorie Davis, mathematics, Janesville, Section 1, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$120.

Francis L. Dechant, fundamentals of radio, Racine, Section 2, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$630.

Wencel F. Duben, fundamentals of radio, Manitowoc, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$600.

James F. Duncan, fundamentals of radio, Oshkosh, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$360.

Harold Foote, DC electricity and circuit analysis, Sheboygan, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$330.

H. H. Fuchs, trigonometry, Rice Lake, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$15, 1 meeting of three hours.

Paul Gilbert, fundamentals of radio, Appleton, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$300.

Galen F. Glessner, mathematics, Superior, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$60.

Elmer L. Haase, algebra and trigonometry, Manitowoc, March 3, 1942, not to exceed \$120.

Norman Hahn, fundamentals of radio, Madison, Section 1, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$255.

Norman Hahn, fundamentals of radio, Madison, Section 2, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$255.

Ross Hansch, fundamentals of radio, Portage, March 9, 1942, not to exceed \$720.

Ernst R. Heine, mathematics, Madison, Section 1, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$120.

Ernst R. Heine, mathematics, Madison, Section 2, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$120:

Paul W. Holton, fundamentals of radio, Janesville, Section 1, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$600.

L. F. Jacobs, radio technician course, Green Bay, Section 1,
March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$720; radio technician
course, Green Bay, Section 2, March 2, 1942,
not to exceed \$720; radio technician course, DePere,
March 3, 1942, not to exceed \$720.

-15-

104. (Continued)

- Thorwald Jorgenson, fundamentals of radio, Chippewa Falls, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$360; technician training, Eau Claire, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$360.
- Roy C. Judd, technician training, Chippewa Falls, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$360; fundamentals of radio, Eau Claire, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$360.
- Herbert P. Kakuske, mathematics, Janesville, Section 2, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$120.
- Jack W. Lower, radio training, Madison, Section 3, March 11, 1942, not to exceed \$225.
- Rudolph Luukinen, fundamentals of radio, Superior, March 4, 1942, not to exceed \$660.
- Herbert J. Mayer, fundamentals of radio, Sheboygan, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$220.
- O. H. Olson, technician training, LaCrosse, Section 2, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$576.
- Ray S. Pearson, fundamentals of radio, Rice Lake, March 4, 1942, not to exceed \$645.
- Walter Ranis, technician training, LaCrosse, Section 3, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$576.
- R. M. Rightsell, radio technician course, Stevens Point, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$720.
- Lloyd W. Root, technician training, Appleton, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$420.
- Ross Spangler, fundamentals of radio, LaCrosse, Section 3,
 March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$144; radio technician course, LaCrosse, Section 1, March 2, 1942,
 not to exceed \$720; fundamentals of radio, LaCrosse,
 Section 2, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$144.
- John H. Stiehl, fundamentals of radio, Madison, Section 3, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$495.
- L. D. Stoll, mathematics, Sheboygan, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$120.
- Alva Van Alstyne, DC and AC laboratory, Madison, Section 2, March 11, 1942, not to exceed \$150.
- Robert W. Wells, trigonometry, Rice Lake, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$60.
- Nathan Williams, mathematics, Oshkosh, March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$360.
- Vincent Vanderheiden, technician training, Madison, Section 1,
 March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$135; technician training, Madison, Section 2, Harch 2, 1942, not to exceed
 \$135.
- L. Stanley Sadler, technical training, Madison, Section 1,
 March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$60; Madison, Section 2,
 March 2, 1942, not to exceed \$60.

APPOINTMENTS:

- 105. Anne L. Neitzel, mathematics, radio technician course, Racine, Section 1, 2 weeks, beginning March 30, 1942, not to exceed \$90.
- 106. Mary A. Potter, mathematics, radio technician course, Racine, Section 2, 2 weeks, beginning March 27, 1942, not to exceed \$90.
- 107. Alva Van Alstyne, DC and AC laboratory, radio technician course, Madison, Section 1, 15 weeks, beginning March 11, 1942, not to exceed \$150.
- 108. The following persons appointed to teach in the Radio Technician Course for 16 weeks, salary not to exceed the amount shown below:

William W. Bigelow, fundamentals of radio, Beloit, section 2, March 2, 1942, \$705.

Gilbert Crossett, laboratory assistant, Milwaukee, section 2, March 20, 1942, \$96; section 3, March 18, 1942, \$96.

Justin A. Deubel, lecture and quiz, Milwaukee, section 2, March 16, 1942, \$480.

A. E. Ericson, lecture and quiz, Milwaukee, section 4, March 17, 1942, \$480.

Ralph C. Huffer, fundamentals of radio, Beloit, Section 2, March 2, 1942, (15; section 1, March 2, 1942, \$125.

John K. Jacobson, lecture and quiz, Milwaukee, section 3, March 17,

1942, \$480.

Lauren L. Johnson, laboratory assistant, Milwaukee, section 1,

March 17, 1942, \$96; section 4, March 19, 1942,

\$96.

Eugene Limpel, laboratory, Milwaukee, section 2, March 17, 1942, \$240; section 3, March 18, 1942, \$240.

Robert R. Randolph, fundamentals of radio; Milton, March 2, 1942, \$720.

Walter Richter, coordinator, Milwaukee, March 16, 1942, \$200.
Raymond J. Suchy, lecture and quiz, Milwaukee, section 1, March 16, 1942, \$430.

Charles Sturtzen, laboratory, Milwaukee, section 4, March 19, 1942, (240; section 1, March 17, 1942, (240).

Vernon Suydam, fundamentals of radio, Beloit, section 1, March 2, 1942, 5595.

- 109. The following persons appointed to teach fundamentals of time and motion study; salary \$180 each:
 - George H. Roberts, Racine, 12 weeks, beginning March 18, 1942; advanced time and motion study, Racine, 12 meetings, beginning March 18, 1942, at \$105.

John L. Tormey, Madison, 16 weeks, beginning March 25, 1942 Harold T. Jaeke, Fort Atkinson, 16 weeks, beginning March 23, 1942.

APPOINTMENTS:

110. The following persons to teach plant protection for defense industries, 16 weeks; salary not to exceed amount shown below:

Wilbur Hansen, Racine, March 23, 1942, \$777.60. Philip H. Oakey, Madison, March 19, 1942, \$180. Thomas P. Boustad, Beloit, March 30, 1942, \$180.

- lll. G. M. Glidden to give a special lecture in connection with the industrial safety engineering course, Green Bay, March 4, 1942, \$12.50; and a lecture at Manitowoc, March 5, 1942, \$12.50.
- 112. George Nevitts to teach industrial safety engineering, at Oshkosh, 16 meetings, beginning March 12, 1942, not to exceed \$240.
- 113. William J. Melville, to teach a class in industrial safety engineering, at Eau Claire, 12 meetings, beginning March 19, 1942, not to exceed \$180.
- 114. William J. Melville, to teach industrial safety engineering, at LaCrosse, 12 meetings, beginning March 18, 1942, not to exceed \$180.
- 115. Mabel A. Murdock, home agent for Clark County, April 1 to December 31, 1942, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months! basis.
- 116. Robert J. Sirny, J. Stephens Tripp scholar, 2nd semester of 1941-42, \$75.
- 117. The following persons appointed Ida M. Sivyer scholars for the 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$25 each:

Philip F. Glusker
Frank F. Jeune
Maurice E. Levine
Alvin F. Loeffler, Jr.

118. The following persons appointed Catherine Oertel scholars for the 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$37.50 each:

Hazel M. Dosch Marie F. Kotick.

- 119. James K. Nelson, F. A. Oertel scholar, 2nd semester of 1941-42, \$50.
- 120. Margery I. Shale, Pi Lambda Theta scholar, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$25.
- 121. The following persons granted Mildred G. Parker scholarships, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$37.50 each:

 Maria S. Geiger

 Virginia J. Smith.

APPOINTHENTS:

The following persons appointed Sears Roebuck scholars for the 2nd semester of 1941-42 at \$67.50 each:

> Charles B. Drewry Norman S. Lindahl Earl E. C. Fager.

- Joseph L. McKibben, post-doctorate fellow in physics, February 15 to 123. August 15, 1942, at \$1200.
- Lynn K. Brunn, industrial fellow in economic entomology, April 1 to June 30, 1942, at \$180.
- Leo J. Klotz, honorary fellow in plant pathology and botany, 2nd 125. semester of 1941-42.
- Roy L. Lovvorn, non-resident scholar (graduate), 2nd semester of 126. 1941-42.
- Kathleen J. Brophy, university scholar, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$125. 127.
- The following persons appointed long course scholars, College of 128. Agriculture, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$50 each:

Fremont A. Betts Nels H. Christensen, Jr. Everett E. Olsen.

- Wilfred H. Hemker, long course sophomore scholar, 2nd semester of 1941-42, at \$100.
- The following persons granted scholarships of \$25 each from the Harry 130. Jerome Memorial fund:

Kuang Po Hu Yung-Shun Wu.

The following persons granted student scholarships, College of Agri-131. culture. 2nd semester of 1941-42:

> Nels d. Christensen, Jr. Everett E. Olsen

Fremont E. Petts. Earl E. C. Fager

Norman S./Lindahl Charles B. Drewry

SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 8. Oscar G. Woelfel, county agent, transferred from Pepin County to Oconto County, April 6, 1942 to December 31, 1943, at \$1700 per annum 12 months basis.
- 9. Nicholas Lee, track assistant, physical education men, salary increased from \$35 to \$40 a month, beginning March 31, 1942.
- 10. Mary Peterman, post-doctorate fellow in chemistry, salary for April, May and June 1942 to be charged to allotment 41:60 instead of RF41:305.
- ll. Frederick E. Shideman, post-doctorage fellow in anesthesia, salary for April, May and June 1942, to be charged to allotment 41:60 instead of RF41:284.
- 12. Demnis Watson, post-doctorate fellow in agricultural bacteriology, salary for April, May and June 1942 to be charged to allotment 41:60 instead of RF 41:233.
- 13. Curtis J. Lund, research associate in obstetrics, salary for April, May and June 1942 charged to allotment 41:60 instead of RF 41:230.
- 14. Brian L. Hutchings, post-doctorate fellow in biochemistry, salary for April, May and June 1942 charged to allotment 41:60 instead of RF 41:270.
- 15. Warren E. Gilson, post-doctorate fellow in physiology, salary for April, May and June 1942 charged to allotment 41:60 instead of RF 41:222.
- 16. L. Worth Seagondollar, graduate assistant in physics, salary increased from \$375 to \$515.45 beginning February 16, 1942.
- 17. George J. Haltiner, graduate assistant in mathematics, salary increased by \$71.82 for the 1st semester of 1941-42.
- 18. Burton H. Colvin, graduate assistant in mathematics, salary increased by \$143.64 for the 2nd semester of 1941-42.
- 19. Ralph J. Book, appointed to teach introductory accounting 1 (section 2), Milwaukee, salary increased from \$160 to not to exceed \$170 for the 2nd semester of 1941-42.

LEAVES OF ABSENCE:

- 3. Stanley A. Tyler, assistant professor of geology, indefinite leave of absence, beginning April 1, 1942, without pay.
- Robert J. Francis, assistant professor in physical education men, April 2, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, without pay.
- 5. Morton Rosenberg, assistant in boultry husbandry, March 9 through March 21, 1942, without pay; and his resignation accepted, to take effect March 30, 1942.
- 6. Rolf F. Poser, senior resident in medicine, March 1, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, without pay.
- Caroline H. Starr, assistant in social service, March 15, 1942 to the close of the academic year 1941-42, without pay.
- 8. Otto E. Mueller, instructor in residence halls, March 30, 1942, withoutpay.
- 9. Arnold H. Dammen, instructor in residence halls, March 31, 1942, without pay.
- 10. Robert L. Reynolds, professor of history, February 16, 1942 to the close of the second semester of 1941-42, without pay.

BUDGET:

The transfer of the following forfeited Ph.D. thesis deposits of \$50 each or a total of \$1500 to the budget of the Wisconsin Press, fund (8), for the publication of "Old Thad Stevens" by Richard Current:

Henry L. Ahlgren Sinclair W. Armstrong Archibald M. Bell Robert R. Austin Eugene H. Bahn Ross A. Baker Hollis W. Barber Russell H. Barker Robert J. Barr James J. Barron Theodore W. Bauer

Sarah Becker Richard G. Black Gladys L. Borchers Clarence M. Case · Peter Charanis Hubert A. Conner Theodore C. Dunham Horace S. Fries Ruth E. Garwood

Lee S. Greene Charlotte A. Henderson Frank L. Johnson V. Webster Johnson Alfred P. Kehlenbeck Chun C. Ling Donald C. Matthews Norman P. Neal Eduardo Neale-Silva Naurice M. Nessert. 30

8. Transfer of \$500 from Regents' Unassigned 1-E to the budget of physical plant, salaries and wages.